
IMMIGRATION:
WHAT TEENS NEED TO KNOW

2004

PUBLIC COUNSEL
PRESIDENT/CEO
Daniel Grunfeld

CHILDREN’S RIGHTS PROJECT STAFF
DIRECTING ATTORNEY

Jenny Weisz

STAFF ATTORNEYS

Kelly Evans
Rosa Hirji

Leslie Parrish
Idanys Pomares-Molina

Andrea Ramos
Karen Ullman

Law Fellows
Katyadela Calderon
Inés Kuperschmit

SOCIAL WORKERS

Margarita G. Castañeda, MSW, MPH
Elizabeth Tsoulos, MSW

Mara Ziegler, LCSW

PARALEGAL

Virgie Ayala

LEGAL ASSISTANT
Juli Newhouse

VOLUNTEER SOCIAL WORKer
Fran Greiff



TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS OF SOME 
WORDS USED IN THIS BOOKLET . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

INTRODUCTION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

PETITION BY FAMILY MEMBERS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

PUBLIC CHARGE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

FAMILY UNITY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

CANCELLATION OF REMOVAL . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

POLITICAL ASYLUM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT (VAWA) . . . . . . . . . . . 17

SPECIAL IMMIGRANT JUVENILE STATUS . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

EMPLOYMENT-BASED APPLICATION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20

LOTTERY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

COLLEGE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

IMMIGRATION LEGAL SERVICES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24

-1-

DEFINITIONS OF SOME WORDS
USED IN THIS BOOKLET

EMPLOYMENT AUTHORIZATION:  A temporary work permit issued
by CIS.  A person who has a work permit may temporarily work in
t he U.S. under the terms on the card, and may work until the
expiration date on the card.

“GREEN CARD”:  A resident alien card issued by CIS to a lawful
permanent resident.  A person who has a resident alien card may live
and work in the U.S. and serve in the military.  Resident alien cards
are not green (although many people call them “green cards”).

IMMIGRANT:  A noncitizen who intends to live permanently in 
the U.S.

IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICE (INS):  The
federal government agency that enforces immigration laws.  The INS
is now called the U.S. Citizenship & Immigration Services  (CIS) and
is part of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS).

IMMIGRATION CONSULTANTS, NOTARIES PUBLIC, NOTARIOS

PUBLICO AND NOTARIOS:  Persons who are not lawyers and cannot
give legal advice.  Before going to a notario, consult with a
community organization that provides free or low-cost service.  See
the agency list at the end of this booklet.

LAWFUL PERMANENT RESIDENT (LPR):  A person who has a
“green card” and may live permanently in the U.S.  An LPR may
work in the U.S. and may serve in the military, but cannot vote.  An
LPR may  be deported for certain criminal convictions or other
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serious problems.  An LPR may become a U.S. citizen after a certain
period of time.

LAWYER/ATTORNEY:  A person who may give legal advice.  This
person has studied law, has a law degree and is licensed by the State
to practice law.

NON-IMMIGRANT:  A noncitizen who is permitted to enter the U.S.
for a limited period of time, and is given a temporary visa (e.g.,
students, tourists, diplomats).

UNDOCUMENTED:  A noncitizen who is living in the U.S. without
legal immigration status.  An undocumented person does not have
emp loyment authorization (cannot work lawfully) and may be
deported if discovered by CIS.  He/she is not eligible for financial aid
for college, but may be eligible for private scholarships. 

U.S. Citizen: A person born in the United States or a person who
naturalized.  A U.S. citizen may not be deported, may petition to
immigrate family members more easily and quickly than an LPR, and
may vote in elections.

NATURALIZATION:  The process of applying for citizenship in the
United States.  Usually, a person must have been an LPR for 5 years
before applying for naturalization.  A person who is an LPR and is
married  to a U.S. citizen may be eligible for citizenship after 3 years.

CHILD CITIZENSHIP ACT OF 2000: An LPR child under the age
of 18 may automatically become a U.S. citizen if his/her parent is a
U.S. citizen or becomes a U.S. citizen. The child must reside in the
U.S. in the legal and physical custody of the U.S. citizen parent.

VISA:  A document or stamp placed in a person’s passport issued by
a U.S. consulate to a noncitizen to allow that person to enter the U.S.
Visas are either nonimmigrant or immigrant.

INTRODUCTION

This booklet discusses some immigration laws in a general way.  It
may give you preliminary answers to immigration questions.   You
should note that just because you meet certain requirements does not
mean you automatically can become a Lawful Permanent Resident
(LPR) or citizen. 

The process of becoming an LPR can be complicated and lengthy.
Dep ending on your individual case, it may take anywhere from
1 to 15 years to become an LPR.  See Charts 1 and 2.

DO NOT GUESS ABOUT IMMIGRATION LAW

If you have questions:
Ë Do not go to or call the Immigration and Naturalization Service

(INS) (now called CIS). 
Ë Contact an immigration lawyer or a community organization that

provides free or low-cost immigration service. 
Ë Be careful of anyone who  promises that you qualify to become

an LPR or citizen.  It is against the law to make such  promises
or to claim a special relationship with CIS.  If you believe you
have been cheated by someone, call one of the agencies listed at
the end of this booklet.

WHAT IF I’M STOPPED BY AN IMMIGRATION OFFICER?

‚ You have the right to remain silent. 
‚ Be polite.  Don’t run away and don’t make any false statements.
‚ P rovide your “ green card” or other immigration papers.  Do not

provide any false papers.
‚ If you are arrested, ask to make a telephone call to a family member.

S peak to  an immigration lawyer before answering any questions or
s igning any forms.  The immigration officer must give you a list of
free or low-cost legal services.



-4- -5-

PETITION BY FAMILY MEMBERS

HOW DO I BECOME A LAWFUL PERMANENT RESIDENT?

This section describes how to become a lawful permanent resident
(LPR) t hrough a family member.  The procedure and time frame
dep end on many different factors, including whether your family
member is a citizen or LPR, your family relationship (husband or
wife, mom/stepmom or dad/stepdad, child, brother or sister), the
country where you were born, your  age and whether you are married.
T he amount of time you will have to wait to get your green card
depends on all of these factors.  Charts 1 and 2 list the current
approximate waiting periods for family based petitions.

The following chart lists the current approximate waiting period for
family petitions.  The waiting period changes every few months.  

CHART 1

IF YOU ARE UNDER 21

IF YOU ARE IF YOU ARE FROM

UNDER 21
AND YOUR

RELATIVE
IS:

ALL OTHER MEXICO PHILIPPINES CHINA INDIA
COUNTRIES

Your USC No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait
husband or
wife

Your LPR 4½ Years 5½ Years 4½ Years 4½ Years 4½ Years
husband or
wife

Your USC No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait
Parent (if
you are not
married)

Your LPR 4½ Years 5½ Years 4½ Years 4½ Years 4½ Years
Parent (if
you are not
married)

Your USC 11 Years 11 Years 20 Years 11 Years 13 Years
brother or
sister who is
21 or older

Definition of terms:  USC = U.S. Citizen; LPR = Lawful Permanent Resident

To find the waiting period that applies in your case, check your
“Pri ority Date” on your CIS “Approval Notice.” For current
“Priority Dates,” visit the U.S. Department of State web site at
www.travel.state.gov/visa_bulletin.html and check the most recent
Visa Bulletin.  You may also call the Department of State recorded
message at (202) 663-1541.
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The following chart lists the current approximate waiting period for
family petitions.  The waiting period changes every few months.

CHART 2

IF YOU ARE 21 OR OVER

IF YOU ARE IF YOU ARE FROM
21 OR OVER

AND YOUR
RELATIVE

IS:
ALL OTHER MEXICO PHILIPPINES CHINA INDIA
COUNTRIES

Your USC No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait
husband or
wife

Your LPR 4½ Years 5½ Years 4½ Years 4½ 4½ Years
husband or Years
wife

Your USC 1½ Years 6 Years 12 Years 1 ½ 1½ Years
Parent (if Years
you are not
married)

Your USC 4 Years 8½ Years 12 Years 4 Years 4 Years
Parent (if
you are
married)

Your LPR 7 Years 8½ Years 7 Years 7 Years 7 Years
Parent (if
you are not
married)

Your USC No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait No Wait
Child who is
21 or Older

Your USC 11 Years 11 Years 20 Years 11 Years 13 Years
brother or
sister who is
21 or older

Definition of terms:  USC = U.S. Citizen; LPR = Lawful Permanent Resident

CAN MY MOM OR DAD HELP ME

BECOME A PERMANENT RESIDENT?

You may be able to qualify to become a Lawful Permanent Resident
(LPR) through your husband or wife, mom, dad, brother, sister, son
or daughter.

P To qualify through your parent, he/she must be a citizen or LPR.
If your parent is a citizen, you are eligible if you are married or
not married.  If your parent is an LPR, you must not be married.

P If you were adopted:
P  Your adoption must have been finalized before you turned 16

and you must live with your adoptive parents for 2 years prior
to applying for your residency; or 

P Your adoption must have been finalized before you turned 18
as long as you are accompanying a brother or sister younger
than age 16 who is also immigrating as an adopted child; and

 
P Your adoptive parent must be a citizen or LPR.

P To qualify through your child, he/she must be a citizen and be at
least 21 years old.

P To qualify through your brother or sister, he/she must be a
citizen and be at least 21 years old.  The waiting period is very
long.  See Charts 1 and 2.
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CAN MY STEPDAD HELP ME IF I ENTERED THE U.S. UNLAWFULLY,
BECOME A PERMANENT RESIDENT? DO I HAVE TO LEAVE THE U.S. TO

P If your stepdad is a U.S. citizen or LPR, he may petition for you
as long as your mom married your stepdad before you turned 18.
Your stepdad does not need to adopt you.  And, you do not need
to have the same last name as your stepdad.

WHAT IF MY MOM NEVER MARRIED HER CITIZEN

BOYFRIEND.  CAN HE HELP ME WITH MY PAPERS?

P If your mom is not married to her boyfriend, he cannot petition
for you because he is not “legally” your stepdad.

MY MOM APPLIED FOR MY RESIDENCY.
WHEN DO I GET MY WORK PERMIT?

P If y our mom is an LPR, you are not immediately eligible to
apply for a work permit unless:

P You are eligible under “Family Unity.”(See page 14)
Or

  
P You are eligible for a temporary “V” non-immigrant

visa.  

A t emporary “V” visa allows the husband, wife and children
(under 21 and not married) of LPRs to apply for a work permit
while they wait for their green card if they filed a family-based
petition with the INS on or before December 21, 2000 and at
least 3 years have passed since the petition was filed. 

# If your mom is a citizen and you are eligible to “adjust your
s t at us” in the U.S. you may be eligible to apply for a work
permit.

OBTAIN MY GREEN CARD?

P If you apply for residency on or before April 30, 2001, you may
be eligible to “adjust status” in the U.S.  That means you do not
have t o leave the U.S. to obtain your green card.  If you are
eligible to “adjust status” in the U.S., you must pay a $1,000
penalty (unless you are not married and under 17 years old).

P If you applied for residency between January 14, 1998 and April
30, 2001 you must prove you were in the U.S. on December 21,
2000.

P If you applied for residency after April 30, 2001, you are not
eligible to “adjust status” in the U.S.  That means you have to
leave the U.S. for your green card interview.  You must return to
your country of origin and go through “consular processing” at
t he U.S. consulate.  That means a representative of the U.S.
consulate will interview you and determine whether you will be
granted permanent residency.  And:

P If, after the age of 18, you have been unlawfully present in
the U.S. for more than 180 days (but less than 1 year), you are
barred (or inadmissible) from returning to the U.S. for 3
years.  There are exceptions.

P If, after the age of 18, you have been unlawfully present in
t he U.S. for more than 1 year, you are barred (or
inadmissible) from returning to the U.S. for 10 years.  There
are exceptions.

P Consult an immigration attorney before leaving the U.S. for
your interview at the U.S. consulate.  See the agency list at
the end of this booklet.
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IF I ENTERED THE U.S. LAWFULLY,
DO I HAVE TO LEAVE THE COUNTRY FOR 10 YEARS

BEFORE OBTAINING MY GREEN CARD?

P If you entered the U.S. lawfully and are the husband, wife,
parent or child (not married and under 21) of a U.S. citizen,
you may be eligible to “adjust status” in the U.S. even if you
applied after January 14, 1998 and even if you have not
maintained lawful nonimmigrant status.  That means you
might not have to leave the U.S. to obtain your green card.

P If you entered the U.S. lawfully and have maintained lawful
nonimmigrant status, and you are the husband, wife or child of
an LPR, you may be eligible to “adjust status” in the U.S.
even if you applied after January 14, 1998.  That means you
may not have to leave the U.S. to obtain your green card.

MY DAD APPLIED FOR HIS GREEN CARD A FEW YEARS AGO,
BUT HE HAS NOT RECEIVED IT. HE DID NOT INCLUDE ME

IN HIS APPLICATION.  CAN HE APPLY FOR ME NOW?

P As long as your dad is alive and applied for his green card,
and  you are under 21 and not married, you may  be eligible to
apply for your green card as a “derivative beneficiary.” 
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MY MOM, SISTERS AND I WALKED ACROSS

THE BORDER 5 YEARS AGO.  WE WERE NEVER STOPPED

BY THE INS OR THE POLICE.  DOES THAT MEAN

I HAVE BEEN “UNLAWFULLY PRESENT” IN THE U.S.?

P If you entered the U.S. without papers (you didn’t have a visa or
overstayed your visa), you are unlawfully present.  The period
of “unlawful presence” starts to run when you turn 18.

P “ Unlawfully present” means, among other things, that you
ent ered the U.S. without a visa, overstayed a visa, violated a
term of your visa, arrived without papers, or were not otherwise
admitted or paroled. There are some exceptions.

P “ Unlawful presence” may be waived if you are the husband,
wife, son or daughter of a citizen or LPR and you prove that the
bar would result in extreme hardship to your citizen or LPR
husband,  wife or parent. You cannot ask for a waiver simply
because you are the parent of a citizen child.
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PUBLIC CHARGE

 I’VE BEEN RECEIVING WELFARE FOR MY

U.S. CITIZEN BABY. CAN MY MOM HELP ME BECOME A
RESIDENT? WILL I BE DENIED A GREEN CARD?

P If your mom is a citizen or LPR, she can petition for you even
if you are receiving welfare for your baby.  If you rely solely
on cash benefits such as CalWORKs, Supplemental Security
Income (SSI), CAPI, or General Assistance/General Relief
(GR) you may be denied residency. That means the CIS can
refuse to give you a green card.  

You must show that you will not become dependent on
government benefits or become a “public charge.” CIS will
consider your age, health, family size, income, education, and
job skills.

P CIS has said it is ok if  you or your baby use the following
benefits: 

Medi-Cal, Healthy Families, County Health Programs, testing
and treatment of communicable diseases, immunizations, 
prenatal care, emergency medical assistance, short-term
rehabilitation services, Food Stamps, WIC (Women, Infants
and Children), School Meals, Emergency Food Assistance
Programs, Head Start, Child Care Services, Foster Care and
Adoption Assistance, job training programs and transportation
vouchers.

This is not the entire list of safe programs.  If you have
questions about benefits and “public charge,” call one of  the
agencies  listed at the end of this booklet.

P If your mom petitions for you, she must file an “Affidavit of
Support.”  Your mom must meet the Federal poverty
guidelines and agree to support you for a certain period of
time.  If your mom does not meet the income requirement, she
may ask a joint sponsor who meets the requirements and
agrees to support you.

P Once you have your green card, CIS cannot deport you for
using public benefits that you qualify to receive.  CIS can
deport you if you lied to get benefits (committed fraud).  For
example, if you lied about your income or immigration status.

‚ If you leave the U.S. for more than 6 months, you can be
questioned about public charge when you return to the U.S.

Public Charge does not apply to a person who is
applying to become a U.S. citizen. 

Public Charge does not apply to refugees and people
granted asylum.

REMEMBER

If your child was born in the U.S., she is a U.S. citizen and may
qualify for welfare even if you are undocumented.  When you
apply for welfare, tell your worker that you are “not eligible.” 
Because you are not applying for yourself, you do not need to
give any information about your immigration status and you
do not need a social security number.  Your worker may only
ask about your child’s immigration status and social security
number.  
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FAMILY UNITY

MY PARENTS OBTAINED THEIR GREEN CARDS

THROUGH AMNESTY, BUT THEY NEVER APPLIED FOR ME.
CAN THEY HELP ME?

P You may be eligible for Family Unity if you are the
husband/wife or unmarried child of persons granted residency
under amnesty, or of persons who registered for class
membership in one of the three late amnesty cases: CSS,
LULAC, or Zambrano.  The relationship (1) must have existed
on or before May 5, 1988 (under the general amnesty) or
December 1, 1988 (under the late amnesty or agricultural
amnesty, also known as “SAW”) and (2) must not have ended
through death or divorce.

P You must have entered the U.S. before May 5, 1988 (under
general amnesty) or before December 1, 1988 (under late
amnesty or SAW) and must have lived in the U.S. continuously
since that date.

P Family Unity gives you an automatic stay of deportation and a
work permit.

P If you are under 18, or if  you do not have 180 days or 1 year of
“unlawful presence,” Family Unity might protect you from the
3 and 10 year bars on admissibility.  See page 11 for definition
of “unlawful presence.”

CANCELLATION OF REMOVAL

I’VE BEEN LIVING IN THE U.S. FOR 12
YEARS. MY PARENTS AND BROTHER

ARE UNDOCUMENTED, BUT MY BABY

IS A U.S. CITIZEN.  CAN I GET

MY GREEN CARD?

P You might be eligible for “cancellation of removal.”
Cancellation of removal is a defense to deportation. To be
eligible, you must be in deportation proceedings or you must
turn yourself in to CIS and be placed in deportation
proceedings (now called “removal” proceedings).

P Once you are in deportation proceedings, you may apply to an
immigration judge to “cancel” your deportation through
“cancellation of removal.”

P You must prove that you have lived in the U.S. continuously for
at least 10 years, that deportation will result in “exceptional and
extremely unusual hardship” to your citizen or LPR husband,
wife, child or parent and that you are a person of “good moral
character.”  Hardship to you is not important to the immigration
judge. In your case, the judge will consider whether deportation
will cause an “exceptional and extremely unusual hardship” to
your U.S. citizen baby.

# You need a lawyer to apply for “cancellation of removal.” You
will be questioned by a judge during a long and complicated
hearing. The judge will not grant you cancellation of removal
simply because you have lived in the U.S. for 10 years.  This law
is very different from suspension of deportation (also known as
the “7 year” law).
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POLITICAL ASYLUM

MY DAD WAS A LEADER OF A GROUP THAT WAS

OPPOSED TO THE GOVERNMENT IN ETHIOPIA.  HE

WAS TAKEN FROM OUR HOME ONE NIGHT AND

TORTURED.  I WAS SO SCARED FOR MY DAD

AND FAMILY.  WE FINALLY FLED

ETHIOPIA AND CAME TO THE U.S.  CAN WE

FILE FOR POLITICAL ASYLUM?

P You may file for political asylum if you have a “well-founded”
fear of persecution or have been persecuted in your home
country based on religion, nationality, race, political opinion, or
membership in a particular social group.

P In most cases, you must file within one year of entering the U.S.
T here are exceptions. Consult with a lawyer about your
individual situation.

P If your application for political asylum is granted, you are an
“asylee.”  You are eligible to apply to adjust to LPR status one
year after your application is granted.

P If your father files for political asylum, he can include your mom
and his children who are under 21.

P If your father or mother has already been granted asylum, you
can apply for asylum as a “derivative” if you are under 21.

VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT
(VAWA)

MY MOM ALWAYS KICKS AND SLAPS ME AND

CALLS ME NASTY NAMES.  SHE THREATENS TO

CALL IMMIGRATION IF I TELL ANYONE AT

SCHOOL.  I NEED HER HELP TO BECOME A
RESIDENT, BUT I CAN’T TAKE THE ABUSE

ANY LONGER.  WHAT CAN I DO?

P You may be eligible to apply for residency without your mom’s
help under a law called VAWA.  CIS will not notify your mom
about your application. 

P If you are abused by (1) your LPR or U.S. citizen husband or
wife, or (2) LPR or U.S. citizen parent or stepparent, you may be
eligible to file a VAWA petition.  To apply as an abused child,
you must be under 21 and not married.

P You must prove that you have suffered physical, sexual or
emot ional abuse.  Start collecting documents such as police
reports, medical records and photographs (which show you were
injured), criminal court documents and counseling records. 

P If y ou are considering a divorce, or if the abuser is facing
deportation (removal), speak with an immigration attorney as
soon as possible.

P If the abuser is undocumented, you might be eligible to apply for
U-visa interim relief.  Eligibility requirements include having
been a victim of certain crimes and cooperating with law
enforcement.
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SPECIAL IMMIGRANT JUVENILE
STATUS 

MY DAD NEVER TOOK CARE OF ME AND MY

LITTLE SISTER.  HE BARELY BOUGHT FOOD

FOR US AND SOMETIMES HIT US.  WE

ENDED UP IN FOSTER CARE.  CAN SOMEONE

HELP US APPLY FOR RESIDENCY?

P If you are in foster care, you may be eligible for residency as a
“ sp ecial immigrant juvenile.”  Children in Juvenile Court
(delinquency) and Probate Court (under a permanent
guardianship) may also be eligible. 

P To qualify:

P You must be under 21 years old and not married.

P You must be a “dependent” of the juvenile court, or the court
mus t  have placed you in the custody of a state agency or
department.

  
P You must be eligible for “long-term foster care” as a result of

abuse, neglect or abandonment. That means family
reunification is not an option in your case.

P It must be in your “best interest” to stay in the U.S. and not
return to your home country.

If you are a foster child, call the Dependency Court’s Special
Immigrant Status Unit at 323/725-4667.

EMPLOYMENT-BASED APPLICATION

I’VE BEEN VOLUNTEERING FOR SEVERAL

MONTHS AND MY EMPLOYERS REALLY LIKE

ME.  MY BOSS SAID SHE WOULD HELP ME

APPLY FOR RESIDENCY, INCLUDING

SPONSORING ME.  CAN I FILE AN

EMPLOYMENT-BASED PETITION?

P To file an employment-based petition, you must have a job offer
in a field that has a shortage of workers because it requires
unique skills.  You may qualify if you show that there are not
enough workers in the U.S. to do the work that you do and you
will not take the job away from other workers in the U.S.

P This process is very long and very difficult to prove. Talk to
immigration attorney before filing any application.
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QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

# How do I apply for a social security card?
To get a social security card, you must be a U.S. citizen, Lawful
Permanent Resident, or have been lawfully admitted to the U.S.
You must complete an application, and prove your age, identity
and lawful status.  There is no charge for a social security card. 

P My parents use a number for their tax returns.  Is
this a social security number?  Your parents probably have
an Individual Tax Identification Number (ITIN).  This number is
issued by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) to persons who are
not eligible for a social security number.  It does not provide you
with the right to work and does not grant you any immigration
status.  To apply for an ITIN, you must file a Form W-7 or 
W-7SP (in Spanish) with the IRS.

P How do I get a California driver’s license or ID?
To get a California driver’s licence or ID, you must have a social
security number and meet other requirements.

If you are not eligible for a driver’s license or ID, you should
apply for some other form of photo identification.  For example:

‚ Apply for a passport at your local consulate office.
‚ If y ou are from Mexico, you can apply for a Matricula

Consular or Consular Identification Card at the Mexican
Consulat e.  In Los Angeles, you can use the card to get a
library card, public utilities and to open a bank account. The
card does not provide you with the right to work and does not
grant you any immigration status.

LOTTERY

CAN I BUY A TICKET FOR THE VISA LOTTERY?

P You do not buy tickets for the visa lottery.  In fact, it costs
nothing to enter! If you win, you must pay a fee for an immigrant
visa.

P To be eligible, you must have a high school diploma or 2 years
work experience in a field that requires at least 2 years of
training.  If your parents apply, they must include you in their
application.  You must be under 21 and not married.  For more
information, call (202) 663-1225 or  visit the U.S. State
Department website at www.travel.state.gov. 

P Only about 55,000 people from under represented countries are
chosen each year through the lottery.

P Residents of “high admission” countries cannot enter the lottery
because their countries already send many people to the U.S.  For
the year 2005 lottery, excluded countries are: China (and Macau),
India, the Philippines, Vietnam, South Korea, Poland, United
Kingdom, Canada, Mexico, Haiti, Jamaica, El Salvador,
Colombia, the Dominican Republic and Pakistan.
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COLLEGE

   QUESTION: I’M UNDOCUMENTED.  
CAN I GO TO COLLEGE? ANSWER: YES!

P You cannot be rejected from a college or university just because
you are undocumented.

P If you are undocumented, you may qualify for in-state tuition at
a California State University (CSU), a University of California
(UC) and a community college.  To be eligible, you must (1)
attend a California high school for at least 3 years, (2) graduate
from a California high school or get your GED, (3) file a
California Nonresident Tuition Exemption Request form with
t he university or college stating that you have applied to be a
Lawful Permanent Resident (“green card” holder) or will apply
as soon as you are eligible.  The form is filed with the college or
university and not with INS (now called CIS).

P Ask your college or university for a California Nonresident
Tuition Exemption Request form.  Check with the Admissions
Office or Office of the Registrar.  The form is also available on
the Public Counsel website at www.publiccounsel.org.

IMMIGRATION LEGAL SERVICES

CARECEN (www.carecen-la.org) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 213/385-7800
2845 West 7  Streetth

Los Angeles, CA  90005
Citizenship, deportation defense, NACARA,FOIA, Late Amnesty, 
 cancellation of removal, political asylum, work permit renewal,
“green card” renewal, family-based petition.
Fees for services based on income; services provided for Central
Americans.

CHIRLA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1-888-6CHIRLA
For referrals and general immigration information 213/353-1333

El Rescate  (www.elrescate.org) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 213/387-3284
1313 West 8  Street, #200th

Los Angeles, CA  90017
Cancellation of removal, citizenship, deportation defense, family-
based petition, NACARA, p o litical asylum, release from
deportation, TPS, VAWA. 
Donations accepted; client must first attend a talk to receive service.

International Institute
Boyle Heights . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 323/264-6217
San Gabriel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 626/452-9421
Van Nuys . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 818/988-1332

Citizenship, family-based petition, VAWA.
Consultation $20; other fees based on income.

L.A. County Bar Immigration Project . . . . . . . . . . 213/485-1872
300 North Los Angeles Street, Room 3107
Los Angeles, CA  90012 (www.lacba.org)
Walk-In Clinic

Leg al advice, counseling and referrals, citizenship, family-based
petition, lost “green card,” visa packets.
Consultation $20; fees depends on service.

Public Counsel  (www.publiccounsel.org) . . . . . . . . . . 213/385-2977
601 South Ardmore Avenue
Los Angeles, CA  90005

Political asylum, VAWA, Special Immigrant Juvenile Status.
Free, if meets low-income guidelines.



ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

Immigration and Naturalization Service: 
(Now called U.S. Citizenship & Immigration Services)
Official government site: www.uscis.gov  
National Customer Service Center: 800/375-5283
Information about immigration laws and regulations, CIS forms and
fees, naturalization requirements, etc.  

U.S. Department of State:
Official government site: www.travel.state.gov  
Information about visas, current priority dates, passport services,
travel tips, etc.
Questions about visas and the application process: 202/663-1225
National Visa Center: 603/334-0700

American Immigration Lawyers Association (AILA): 
For private immigration attorneys, you may contact the AILA
lawyer referral service at 800/954-0254; www.aila.org.  Note:
private attorneys charge a fee for their services.  

National Immigration Project of the National Lawyers Guild:
www.nationalimmigrationproject.org
617/227-9727
For help finding an immigration attorney.
NLG National Office:
212/679-5100 x12
Help for people contacted by the FBI, help finding criminal
lawyers, etc.

Resources continued on page 25
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Department of Motor Vehicles:
Official government site: www.dmv.ca.gov
800/777-0133
Information about obtaining a driver’s license, etc.

Social Security Administration:
Official government site: www.ssa.gov
800/772-1213
Information about how to get a social security card, replace your card,
applications, etc.

Internal Revenue Service:
Official government site: www.irs.gov
800/829-3676
Information about how to apply for an Individual Taxpayer
Identification Number, taxes, etc.

Mexican Consulate:
Official government site: www.sre.gob.mx/losangeles
213/351-6800
2401 West 6  Streetth

Los Angeles, California 90057

You may find this booklet and other Public Counsel booklets at
www.publiccounsel.org (first, click on “Resources”; second, click on
“Publications”; third, click on “Children’s Rights Project”).
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While this publication is designed to provide accurate
and current information about the law, readers should
contact an attorney or other expert for advice in
particular cases, and should also consult the relevant
statutes and court decisions when relying on cited
material.

Public Counsel, the public interest law office of the
Los Angeles County and Beverly Hills Bar
Associations, is the largest pro bono law firm in the
U.S., and also is the Southern California affiliate of
the Lawyers’ Committee for Civil Rights Under Law.
Publ ic Counsel coordinates the contributions of
thousands of volunteer lawyers each year.  Public
Counsel serves those in need — such as children and
the elderly, literacy projects and low income
housing providers, refugees and the homeless — by
providing legal representation and matching
financially eligible clients with volunteer attorneys.

All individuals referenced in this booklet are fictional.
Permission to photocopy is granted, provided that
“Publ i c Counsel Law Center © 2004" appears on each
page and that any photocopies are not sold.  Any
adaptation or translation of the contents of this
brochure must be authorized by Public Counsel.

©2004 BY PUBLIC COUNSEL.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

Public Counsel
P.O. Box 76900

601 South Ardmore Avenue
Los Angeles, CA  90076

213/385-2977
or

800/870-8090
Adoptions:  323/526-6360




